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[sound check, pause]

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Good
morning and welcome to the City's Council sixth day
of hearing on the Mayor's Executive Budget for Fiscal
2017. My name 1is Julissa Ferreras-Copeland, and I'm
the Chair of the Finance Committee. We are joined by
Committee on Sanitation and Solid Waste Management
chaired by my colleague Council Member Antonio
Reynoso. We've been joined by Minority Leader Matteo
and Council Member King. Today, we will hear from
the Department of Sanitation, the Board of Elections,
the Campaign Finance Board, the Law Department and
the Department of Citywide Administrative Services.
Before we begin, I'd like to thank the Finance
division staff for putting hearing together including
the Director Latonia McKinney, Committee Counsel
Rebecca Chasen; Deputy Director Regina Poreda Ryan;
and Nathan Toth; Unit Head John Russell, Crilhien
Francisco; Finance Analyst John Seltzer; and James
Subudhi; the Finance Division Administrative Unit
Nicole Anderson; Maria Pagan and Roberta Caturano who
pull everything together. Thank you all for your
efforts. I would also like to remind everyone that

the public will be invited to testify on the last day
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of budget hearings on May 24th beginning at
approximately 3:00 p.m. The member--for the members
of the public who wish to testify, but cannot attend
a hearing, you can email your testimony at finance
division--I'm sorry-—-financetest--finance
testimony@council.nyc.gov, and the staff will make it
a part of the official record. Today's Executive
Budget Hearing begins with the Department of
Sanitation. The department's Fiscal 2017 Executive
Budget totals $1.66 billion, which represents a $95.5
million increase from the Fiscal 2016 Adopted Budget.
DSNY's budget includes $28.2 million in new needs for
some exciting programs that the committee would like
to learn more about: Subsidized jobs for homeless,
which will allow the department to hire and provide
job training for 300 and--300 people a year in the
Electronic Voice Collection Pilot for homes in Staten
Island. Matteo is very grateful to that. Increased
Sunday and holiday basket service and, of course,
following winter storm Jonas that came earlier this
year, we have to talk about snow removal. On behalf
of the residents living in the outer boroughs I'm
thrilled that the Administration included funding to

purchase 21 front-end loaders that the Council for in
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its budget response. These vehicles will improve
snow clearing operations on narrow streets, and I
look forward to learning more about how DSNY plans to
deploy them during this next storm. Before we begin,
I'd like to remind my colleagues that the first round
of questions for the agency will be limited to five
minutes per council member, and if council members
have additional questions we will have a second round
of round of questions at three minutes per council
member. I will now turn the mic over to my co-chair
Council Member Reynoso for his statement and then we
will hear testimony from the Commissioner of
Sanitation, Kathryn Garcia.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Thank you Chair
Ferreras. Good afternoon and welcome to the
Committee on Sanitation and Solid Waste Management
hear, our Fiscal Year 2017 Executive Budget for the
Sanitation held jointly, of course, with the
Committee on Finance. Today, we will hear testimony
from the department on its $1.66 billion Fiscal 2017
Expense Budget, $1.9 billion Fiscal 2016 to 2020
Capital Commitment Plan and general agency
operations. The committee looks forward to hearing

on important issues regarding capital and expense




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH COMMITTEE
ON SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT JOINTLY
WITH COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS 8

rehabilitation and construction projects. The
department plans to leverage Clean NYC and updates on
Fresh Kills Landfill closure plan as well as
department pilot programs and studies mostly in
Staten Island. I look forward to hearing the

testimony of Kathryn Garcia and, of course, just want

to get straight to it. So, welcome to--
CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: [off mic]
Committee counsel needs to swear her in. (sic)

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Oh, yes, can we
please have the committee counsel swear our folks in.

LEGAL COUNSEL: Do you affirm that your
testimony will be truthful to the best of your
knowledge, information and belief?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: I do.

LEGAL COUNSEL: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Good morning, Chair
Reynoso, Chair Ferreras-Copeland and members of the
City Council's Committees on Sanitation and Solid
Waste Management and Finance. I am Kathryn Garcia,
Commissioner of the New York City Department of
Sanitation. I am joined by Dennis Diggins, First
Deputy Commissioner and by Assistant Commissioner

Michael Ebert, and--and thank you for this
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opportunity to testify on the department's expensing
capital portions of the Mayor's Fiscal Year 2017
Executive Budget. The Fiscal 2017 Executive Budget
allocates $1.7 billion in expense funds to the
department. Of this, $957.9 million is for personnel
services and $704.8 million is for other than
personnel services. Our budgeted headcount for the
Fiscal 17 Executive Budget is 9,766 with 7,490
uniformed agency employees including 6,260 Sanitation
workers. The department's capital portion of the
Fiscal 17 Executive Budget is $397 million. The
Capital Budget includes $182 million for collection
trucks and other essential equipment including $64
million in new funding to purchase rear loader and
dual bin trucks to replace the agency's over age
collection vehicles. Under the department's Four-
Year Capital Plan, the department is funded to
construct new sanitation garages to serve Brooklyn
District 3, Staten Island District 1, Bronx Districts
9, 10 and 11 and Manhattan District 6 and 8, and
complete construction of the three permanent marine
transfer stations pursuant to the Solid Waste
Management Plan. Additionally, new funding in the

department's Fiscal 17 Expense Budget includes
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$818,000 to sweep approximately 100 miles of highway
ramps and shoulders per week as part of Mayor de
Blasio's Clean NYC Initiative; $1.7 million for
additional Sunday and holiday basket collection in
high pedestrian traffic areas primarily in the outer
boroughs; $1.4 million for enhancements to the Novis
handheld enforcement devices, and $3.8 million for
the purchase of automotive equipment repair parts.
The department's cost savings in the Fiscal 17
Executive Budget include $2.9 million in personnel
service surplus and $1.1 million in operational and
administrative savings. To help meet Mayor de
Blasio's ambitious goal of sending zero waste to
landfills by 2030 announced last year as part of One
New York, the Plan for a Strong and Just City, the
department will continue its aggressive agenda to
encourage New Yorkers to reduce, reuse and recycle
waste.

First, I'd like to thank the Sanitation
and Solid Waste Committee for its continued
leadership in helping to promote zero waste in New
York City. Last week the committee advanced an
important and critical piece of legislation, Intro

209-A, that will reduce the use of single-use
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carryout bags in the city. I also want to thank the
Speaker and Council for passing this important bill.
I look forward to working with the Council, the
business community and all New Yorkers to promote the
use of reusable bags and educate New Yorkers about
the bag fee. Expanding New York City Organics
Program is critical to achieving our zero waste
goals. By the end of this year, we will expand our
residential curbside collection program to reach more
than one million New Yorkers, and become the largest
organics collections program in the country. The
department will continue to work to expand New York
City Organics to serve all New Yorkers with curbside
collection or convenient neighborhood drop-off
locations by the end of 2018. We also continue to
partner with NYCHA to expand NYCHA Recycles to give
all NYCHA residents access to convenient recycling
opportunities. In less than a year more than 850
NYCHA buildings now participate, which includes
installation of recycling bins, staff training and
resident outreach and ramp up of collection service.
All NYCHA buildings will participate in NYCHA
Recycles program by the end of 2016. This year we

will hold 10 safe disposal events, two in each
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borough, to provide residents with a one-stop drop-
off to safely dispose of potentially harmful
household products. We held the first three safe
events in Brooklyn, Staten Island and Queens last
month, which had record breaking attendance and
collection volumes compared to prior years. At the
Staten Island Safe Event, we reconfigured traffic
into the venue, and had people in and out in just 15
minutes. The next safe events will be held in the
Bronx on Saturday, May 14th, in the Orchard Beach
parking lot, and in Manhattan on Sunday, June 26th at
the Columbia University Teachers College at 120th
Street and Broadway. All events are held rain or
shine from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and are open to
all city residents regardless of the borough they
live in. 1In addition, this fall, the department will
launch a pilot curbside electronic waste collection
program on Staten Island. The program will be
modeled on the department's existing CFC Collection
Program, which allows New Yorkers to call 311 or go
online to make a collection appointment. The pilot
will allow us to measure the demand for the service
and collection productivity to evaluate the

feasibility of expanding it elsewhere.
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The department's garages and other
facilities are essential to ensure that our operating
bureaus can perform their missions. The department
has resumed efforts to construct a new garage for
Brooklyn District 3 and resume the design of the
facility. The project is on target to begin
construction in the summer of 2019. 1In addition, the
department is currently in the scope development
phase for the Staten Island District 1 garage at the
former Fresh Kills Landfill. Construction is
projected to begin in the summer of 2020. The
department is currently procuring a design for Bronx
Districts 9, 10 and 11 garage replacement project.
Once we select a consultant team and register the
related design, contract design, efforts will
commence for this new Sanitation garage.

Construction of the state-of-the-art multi-district
garage is currently scheduled to start in the summer
of 2020. Last year, DSNY implemented the first phase
of the Sanitation Management Analysis and Resource
Tracking system known as SMART. This project is the
result of a multi-year planning and development
effort that will ultimately result in the replacement

of the department's half century old paper based
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assignment resource tracking procedure with a web-
based real time system. Over the next two years, the
department is funded to roll out additional phase of
the project in its Sunset Scan, the decades old
precursor system.

The department's snow budget for Fiscal
Year 17 1is funded for $88.1 million. Overall, we
were fortunate to have a relatively mild winter
season with few plowable snowstorms with the
exception of the January 2016 Jonas Blizzard. As you
many know, the National Weather Service recently
upgraded its snowfall totals for this severe storm to
an official 27.5 inches, making it the heaviest
snowfall on record. Last month, the department
released its After Action Report for the January 2016
blizzard, which includes a thorough review of the
department's response to the storm. The department
faced enormous challenges during the storm including
intense snowfall in sections of Queens that buried
some streets in more than 30 inches of snow. As a
follow-up to the Mayor's desire to improve response
time and effectiveness in the future, the report
identifies several recommendations for improvement.

The department's Executive Budget includes $21
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million in the current fiscal year to purchase
additional snow equipment including 80 small
Hollister plows to improve snow clearing on narrow
street segments and dead-end streets; 21 additional-
frontend loaders to improve the efficiency of salt
loading and enable more rapid clearing of streets
that cannot safely be cleared with standard plows and
40 additional skid steer plows to further mechanize
the clearing of crosswalks, bus stop and other
pedestrian infrastructure. This summer the
department will also provide full day refresher
training for all Sanitation workers, supervisors and
superintendants to reinforce proper snow plowing
techniques and build confidence necessary to fight
these kinds of storm. We believe that the additional
time and the important investment in each worker's
training and response skills and our future
operations going forward into future snow seasons.
This year the department will expand snow sector
routes to the rest of the Bronx and Brooklyn bringing
all five boroughs into this new more efficient
routing methodology. As mentioned in the After
Action Report, investments in GPS tracking systems

including Fund NYC over the last several years proved
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invaluable to the department's ability to track its
progress and quickly redeploy resources to the
hardest hit neighborhoods just hours after the snow
stopped falling. The department will continue to
refine these systems with the help of DOITT and our
own information technology staff. I would like to
thank you for the opportunity to testify today on the
funding of department's programs and operations over
the next fiscal year and our proposed initiative to
advance the department's zero waste goals. I am
confident that funding under the Fiscal 17 budget
will permit the department to continue to meet its
mission of keeping New York City safe, healthy and
clean. My staff and I are will now be happy to
answer your questions.

CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Thank
you, Commissioner, and thank you for your brief and
very information opening statement. I really
appreciate it so that we can get to the questions,
and before I start my gquestions, I just want to say
during Super Storm Sandy--Jonas it was a very
difficult time in particular wit many members in my
district or in Queens, in some areas of Brooklyn.

But one thing that you were always was responsive.
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You always answered my call even when I was irate--
[laughter]--and--and snowed in. So I have to
acknowledge that and--and I think that you put
literally your mouth--I mean your money where you
mouth is and in---investment in--in New York City in
this way is smart, and very much appreciated by my
constituents and the constituents of many other
colleagues. I also wanted to acknowledge the Chair,
who was the first call that I made that morning we
were snowed in. So I want to talk about a--a brief
overview, and I know that my colleague from Staten
Island is going to delve in more into the E-waste
Program. But I wanted to know can you provide a
breakdown of the cost as well as the cost to roll out
a citywide waste collection service.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Certainly. So,
what we have projected is that we will need
approximately 12 Sanitation worker posts and six
vehicles. And so that is how we came up with the
cost for--for the Staten Island project, and--and
this is making an educated guess on what the demands
will be. We have some flexibility in terms of if we
suddenly have a huge amount of demand running more

shifts during the overnight hours, if we have to do
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that. The real constraint here is going to be
getting the vehicles because we can't put this
electronics and rear loaders because we can't crush
it.

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: So what
kind of vehicles are required for the collection of
eWaste?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: So they're still--
they're still looking into it, but we believe that
we're going to go with about 14-foot box trucks.

CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Right.
Okay. Does the department have an update regarding
the ongoing discussion with Upstate legislators to
repeal the ban?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: I doubt that
they'll repeal the ban, but one of the things that we
have been working very hard with the Upstate
Legislature--Legis—--Legislative body, and also with
DEC is there still are no rules that have been put
out since this legislation was passed actually in
2010. And so, we've been working to try and have
that happen, and also there--there are some things
about the law that we think could be improved, and

really that's the convenience standards. Because
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right now mail back is considered convenient, and
it's just not feasible for very large pieces of
electronics.

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Right.
Well, that's interesting because I think I had about
a 46-inch television dropped off in front of my house
just randomly. I don't know if it was because I'm
the Council Member because we were like hey I don't
know what to do with this TV. Go drop it off in
front of Julissa's house. But it is--it's not only
your own waste, for me it was like okay I have this
television, what do I do now? So this is something
that while I'm excited that it's starting in Staten
Island for our colleagues who have been asking for
this, the citywides. Do you have an estimation of
what the citywide cost would be to do--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] I
mean, we--we have a--an estimate of it, but it--it
probably would be somewhere around the $5 to $7
million range, but I really think that we're going to
learn a lot on Staten Island about whether or not
we've sized it correctly.

CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Right.
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COMMISSIONER GARCIA: And I really do
think that for citywide there's less of an issue in
Manhattan and other dense areas where we have the
eCycle program.

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Right.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: And so they have
more or less curbside collection now. They put a bin
in those buildings, and the vendor comes and get it
whenever the super calls and says that the bin is
full. And so they actually have a--a very good
option. I know that in areas in the outer boroughs
it's been much more difficult.

CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Right.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: We have--

CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND:
[interposing] So there's one in one, two and three-
family homes.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Right, where you
have to either come to a safe disposal event that we
host or go to one of the drop-off sites in the
different boroughs.

CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Right.
Okay. I wanted to talk--with the increased ability

to redeploy the small front-end loaders to narrower--
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narrower streets, what strategies will you use to
determine where they will be deployed, which areas
are most in need?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: It used to--

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND:
[interposing] 97th Street. [laughs]

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Yeah, I--I know
where you live. Yes I do. I'm very familiar with
that area after the winter. So we are really focused
on those particular street segments that--that we
define as being very narrow but tertiary. And so
we're focused on putting them in those areas. So
it's going to be primarily in the Eastern Queens
section, Staten Island, probably not that many in
Brooklyn. They don't have as many small--small
street segments nor does Manhattan, but there are
also some areas in the Bronx that have some very
small street segments. And there are some areas in
Queens West particularly up near Astoria that have
some dead ends that we are--

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND:
[interposing] Right.

COMMISSTIONER GARCIA: -—-that we are

prioritizing.
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CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Right. I
think it was Council Member Vacca and Palma's areas
that--that source and we funded.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] Bronx
11.

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Yeah,
yeah. Okay, great. Well, we're really excited. I
hope you don't have to use them for 36 inches, but
it's good to know that should they come again next
year we're ready.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: We are--we will be
ready.

CHATIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Yep.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: So the purchases
are in, and they know that we want them by the
beginning of snow season.

CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND:

Excellent. Now, Fiscal 2017's Executive Plan
includes $7.4 million in Fiscals 2017 and varying
levels of funding in the out years to hire 300
employees annually for the department's job training
program. Which Commissioner--the HRA Commissioner
and DHS, who happens to be the same person, testified

to how great this program or opportunity will be.
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Will the program provide these supplemental cleaning
services citywide or for only high priority areas.
Where will--where will we see these 3007

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: We're very focused
on the high priority areas. So, we'll be in 31
districts, and we'll be in all five boroughs, but
Staten Island and Queens East will see the least.
They have the--they have the highest scorecard
numbers.

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Uh-huh.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: But we'll have more
in sort of Brooklyn North where I have my lowest
score--scorecard. We--we are planning for about 70
there. 1In the Bronx about 72, and then in Manhattan,
Brooklyn South and Queens West, you know, about 24 to
40 in those areas. So we are trying to focus on
where we have the most challenges, and focus the
resources there.

CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: So I know
that this a six-month program, and I guess you got a-
-a-—-a new set of workers or--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] So,

just--so not--
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CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND:
[interposing] So, walk me through the programming.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Sure, absolutely.
We haven't actually kicked it off yet, but--

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND:
[interposing] Okay.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: —--but the way that
we designed it is that we will do 50 a month--

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND:
[interposing] Okay.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: --and have it
[coughs] be rotating all the time. So that we just
get 50 new every month, and that we would then be at
300, and that first group would then go off just to
manage, you know, bringing new people in, orienting
them. So we think that that will be how the program
will work, and then HRA will be doing--they're
required to be trained--have training once a week.
They will do the full-day training and then we will
be doing sort of the basics of you need to get to
work on time, you know, Jjob readiness,

appropriateness in the workplace.
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CHATIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Okay. Do
you see this being an opportunity for a pipeline in
other--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] No.

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: -—-city
jobs?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Well, no, for other
city jobs, but not for Sanitation.

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: No, no,
but for other possible--have--have you engaged in
those conversations at all?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: And we always
encourage anyone who is--is working with us on a
temporary basis to take all of the civil service
exams.

CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Right.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: That is really--
that is the only way to get into employment in the
city at this point in time.

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Great.
Thank you very much, and I will now have my co-chair
Council Member Reynoso, Chair Reynoso ask his

questions.
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CHATRPERSON REYNOSO: Thank you, Chair.
Commissioner, the Commercial Waste Collection study I
was wondering when--when that study would be
completed.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Very soon.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Can we get better
than very soon?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Before the end of
the fiscal year.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: So before June
30th?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Before June 30th.
[coughing]

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Okay.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: I told you late
spring. I felt late spring [laughter] is June 21st--

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: [interposing] It
is, yeah.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: —--that the--

CHATRPERSON REYNOSO: I felt like it was
supposed to be a little earlier than that, but--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: No, I think--I'm

pretty sure I testified in March, late spring.
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CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: You said June 30th?
I--I--1 remember late May but it's okay.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Late spring. I
said late spring.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Oh, late spring.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Late spring.
Spring is--I'11--I'1ll even--I'm pretty sure we can
get it done by--

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Nine days late.
No, it's okay.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: If I get in—--I'11
probably get it in before then.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Okay, but June 30th
is a good--a good timeline also to prepare for.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Uh-huh.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: I just do want to
introduce again members of the committee Matteo and
King, but we've also been joined by Council Member
Lander and Miller. So thank you guys. [coughs]
Fresh Kill Landfill Closure.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Uh-huh.

CHATRPERSON REYNOSO: It includes $83.7
million in Fiscal Year 2017 to close the Fresh Kill

Landfill.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH COMMITTEE
ON SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT JOINTLY
WITH COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS 28

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Uh-huh.

CHATRPERSON REYNOSO: I just want to know
the process, where we are with the closure? How long
it's going to take--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing]
Certainly, so--

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: --how much money is
it going to take and just overall?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: So one of the
things I--

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: You're always
saying as much as it needs, money and time to close.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: So, actually and--

and that actually is a requirement under Part 360 so-

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: That is correct.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: --we are legally
required to have enough money close Fresh Kills
Landfill. Much of Fresh Kills actually is already
closed. We have one more section to close, which is
the 1-9 section. The money that is budgeted will
fully fund the closure of that. We are in
procurement now, and we are just waiting for it to be

awarded and registered. And then it basically takes
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us about a year per phase just because of the volume
of material. I mean we've been stockpiling some
material already at Fresh Kills to do the cover, and
we anticipate that it will be fully closed, assuming
that we get all the procurement done between 2020 and
2021. But it takes up--it's--it's a very big project
to close, the landfill, but much of the mechanical
pieces or the gas collection, the storm water is
already in place.

CHATIRPERSON REYNOSO: We incurred
additional costs that weren't foreseen when we first
started the project to close it?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: I don't that, and I
actually don't know the history of all of it in terms
of it being additional costs. I actually think that
we came in under estimate for this particular
contract. So, I--I--but I don't know from the
history from when it was initially budget for. I
think one of the things that did change over time is
that you used to be able to use capital money to do
these sorts of things and--and general accounting
standards changed so now it has to be expense money.

CHATRPERSON REYNOSO: I want to get to

NYCHA--
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COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] Yes.
CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: --and recycling.
COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] Yes.

CHATRPERSON REYNOSO: I know we've just

started--
COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] Yes.
CHATRPERSON REYNOSO: -—-are we are in
stages of development. I really want to speak to

have you seen any progress in Avatar (sic)? 1It's a
program where we are going to be investing some
funding in to make sure it happens right. I just
want to know what progress you've made early on in
the program.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: So we've rolled out
to many of the--many of the developments at this
point, and we will be at all developments, which by
that, I mean we will have sent a letter to all
residents inviting them to a meeting and outreach for
the program to teach them about recycling. NYCHA
will have installed the bins, at every site in order
to facilitate the residents recycling their material.
We've had--from what we've seen, and we are looking
at it pretty closely we are getting a lot of the

caretaker materials. We're getting a lot of their
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cardboard at this point in time, and then it's been
more mixed with what the residents are doing. We are
going to be pushing out a program with NYCHA to
engage residents of NYCHA to do the outreach through
our partnership with Grow NYC and I believe that
actually this we had 21 people come to our first
training to be an environ--environmental ambassadors.
And so we're excited to--to do that. We think the
peer-to-peer will be more successful.

CHATIRPERSON REYNOSO: I--T really want
that program to work and just want to make sure that
we're not missing any steps along the way to get,
well, I guess a high level of participation.
[coughing]

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Yeah. You know
that the biggest challenge with--with participation
at NYCHA is that it is less convenient for them than
for almost any other New Yorker because they're going
to have to bring their material outside. There is no
place to put a recycling bin in those buildings.

They do not have lobbies. They do not have rooms on
the floor. It would be a violation of fire code. So
they--it is--it is--it is less convenient than it is

for almost any other New Yorker just because of the
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ways the buildings are designed, but we are-- You
know, we have a lot of enthusiasm from NYCHA to be
doing this, and we'll continue to figure out what

will work.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Okay, and then I've
got two more questions. The vehicle use for life
average. We always have this discussion as to when
our vehicles are going to be--and be up to date I
guess or--or current. So that our great Sanitation
workers, our boldest get to--get an opportunity, our
strongest--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Our strongest.

CHATIRPERSON REYNOSO: -—--our strongest.
The boldest is Corrections.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Yeah.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: 1I've been hearing--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing]
Don't--don't confuse me.

CHAIRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: I think
they're the boldest.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: But I just want to
speak to their--the life--the life cycle of those

trucks and where we will have them now.
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COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Absolutely. SO
they are old right this second. But we were funded.

CHATRPERSON REYNOSO: Can you repeat
that. I'm sorry.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: They were—-—-they are
old right this second. They--we--we were funded,
though, but OMB to increase our purchases from the
Preliminary Budget substantially. I think that we
were funded for about 70. We are now funded for 200
plus of the rear loaders and for 90 dual bins for the
next two years, and then it comes down. S o they're
giving us more upfront to deal with our overage
issue. But they're putting us closer to a level buy,
which is what we want. Right now what you'll see is
that we buy a whole lot because we get too old and
then we don't buy it for a couple years. Then we buy
a lot, but it's going to take, you know-- Once we
have the CP in hand, which I have, you know, full
support from DCAS and OMB on, it still is going to
take 18 months for the builds. You know, the--the
trucks that I purchased last year have not arrived
yet. It will--it's--it's a long time to do a build

for a-—-a refuse truck.
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CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Okay, so what--how
long do you think it will take before we start
getting a site-- Oh, so are you starting the process
to break the cycle down to not have it Jjust be
turnover I guess. I guess what one--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] We
are--we are striving towards getting to what we think
is the optimal replenishment cycle, and we think that
we're on track, and we think that OMP--OMB has
properly funded us to--to be on track. We--we really
want a--a level buy. The--the peaks and valleys are
not only expensive in the years in which they occur
on a capital program, but they're much harder to
manage on the maintenance side.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: And the--the last
thing I want to ask is the organics collection. I
know other colleagues want to speak to this. The
siting of a facility or the contracts, are we going
to be able to push these or expand the organics
program and start handling it. I'm extremely
concerned over what the plan is there, and I really
don't feel like we have one yet, or we've--we've
heard one. I just really want to get your insight as

to how we're going to be able to handle that long
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term, and what the siting of those facilities would
be, if they would happen in the city--in the city of
New York. But is that happening outside for
something you have a conversation about what that
contract looks like, or who we're working with are we
clean in these facilities?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing]
Certainly we have--we--so, the pilot contracts that
were put in place several years ago, one of the
things we found is that we were having loads rejected
because of contamination particularly from plastic
bags. And that's in part because the back processing
infrastructure is farms. They've never really been
taking organics from munic--a municipality. So we put
out bids for new contracts that required pre-
processing. They're--basically they're usually big
machines that--will rip it apart and end up creating
just the organic sort of slurry. All of those
contracts except I think perhaps one are with the
Controller at this point in time, and that should
give us the capacity to continue to roll out, and
they are located at transfer stations except on
Staten Island where we own our compost facility, and

that compost facility actually does need some




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH COMMITTEE
ON SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT JOINTLY
WITH COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS 36

additional work to take any additional organics on
the island. But the people who won the bids were
American Recycling, Regal, Waste Management, Brooklyn
Transfer, We Care, and so those are where the
material will go in the future.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: $So in a couple of
those names that I heard are in North Brooklyn?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: So I just want to
reiterate that we're getting to a point, and I guess
this is--and I say this every time, and I guess I
don't enough work on it. We need to stop sending
garbage to North Brooklyn. [coughing] It cannot be
the only place where we make that happen, and if it
means that the city of New York has to invest real
money into building facilities elsewhere or
contracting outside the city of New York, then we
need to make that happen. We can't continue to be
the dumping ground literally of the city of New York,
and it seems like every new program that we have no
matter how inventive it is and how supportive we want
it to be, we continue to send garbage to North

Brooklyn specifically. I don't where the--the other
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locations are in Southeast Queens or in the South
Bronx.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] Some
of them are in the--

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Some of them are.
So we just really have to start talking about whether
or not maybe the deciding task force is something
that we need to re--re--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: So--so—-—-the one--
let me--let me--one of the challenges is that
transfer stations can only be cited in M3 zones, and
there are not a lot of M3 zones outside of Brooklyn
North, Queens 12, Bronx 1 and 2 and Queens on the
north side of Newtown Creek. There--there are Jjust
not that many out there.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: Yeah, but that's
not--So we--we--we--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] So
let--let me finish. The other thing is that there
will be a lot less putrescible garbage going to North
Brooklyn when Hamilton opens and when South West
opens.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: [interposing] So

what you're saying--




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH COMMITTEE
ON SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT JOINTLY
WITH COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS 38

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: A thousand tons a
day are going to be going there.

CHATIRPERSON REYNOSO: That's above here.
(sic)

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: That's a lot.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: We have 20,000 tons
of capacity. So when--when you put it in
perspective, 5% of that--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] But
there's not 20,000 tons going there now.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: But it's 20,000
tons of capacity, though. It still doesn't matter.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing]

Right.

CHAIRPERSON REYNOSO: On any given--on
any given day, math--I'm just going to do the math.
On any given day we can get rights on the capacity is
what I'm saying. You have--the Sanitation Department
has allowed that to--to be a possibility is what I'm
saying. So when we talk about losing a thousand tons
or even 800, we're talking about a drop in the bucket
to the greater--the greater issue we have there. And
when you remove 800 tons after Hamilton goes out, it

doesn't mean you just replace it with something else.
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That's what I'm trying to tell you. We've got to
figure out a permanent system that we stop sending
garbage to North Brooklyn, and we need to create new
end-zones in these rezoned districts that we're
talking about here in the city of New York were
everyone getting affordable housing, talk about M
zones that we just start putting some new waste
transfer stations in districts outside of the
overburdened districts in the South Bronx and
Southeast Queens and in North Brooklyn, and at this
point it's going to have to be an all out, you know,
campaign against what's happening here against the
city in these neighborhoods again. So I just want to
let you know that. At this point it's extremely
disappointing to see that we haven't been able to be
creative or thoughtful about where we move this trash
outside of just dumping it in the same poor black and
brown communities that we've traditionally done so--
and I guess that's my--my other question then.
CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Thank
you, Chair Reynoso. We will now her from Minority
Leader Matteo followed by Council Member King

followed by Council Member Lander.
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COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Thank co-chairs.
Commissioner, thank you. Thank you for the--for the
wonderful partnership we have in Staten Island.
You've really been able to get some great things done
in the last year. So I want to start with our E-
waste program obviously, and again I thank you for
the pilot program on Staten Island, for working with
me to make this a reality. So I know you said it
before, but I just want to just reiterate so we're--
we're using 12 person--12 DSNY personnel--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] Yes.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: --and six—-7?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: And six vehicles.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: And six vehicles.
So that's where we're doing now the prep for again
the vehicles?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Yes.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: We--we think we'll
start in the fall?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Yes,

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: And then we'll do
the--basically how you get rid of a refrigerator.
Someone will call--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Correct.
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COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: --and then you'll
schedule a time and they'll just put it on that--on
the--they'll just get it out to the curb?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Yep.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Okay, and it'll--
you'll give them a date and--7?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Yep.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Okay, great.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Just like the air
conditioners or refrigerators.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: So, and we think
fall and we allocated $3 million? Was that your--is
that baselined for the--for the program?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: $2--$2.7.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: $2.77?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Yeah, but some of
that is just to buy the vehicles, the initial
purchases. So the ongoing should not be as high.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: And do we think
that we're going to limit to a--to a time during the
day? Are we going to go off hours?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Well, we right now

think it will be primarily a regular shift, the
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regular 6:00 to 2:00 shift we will be using, but we
honestly don't know how much demand for that.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: And--and obviously
you don't know how much--you did with the trucks?
Right, I mean do you know yet like the capacity of
how many, how to--7?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: We honestly don't
know, you know, are people going to call for small
items as well? Are they going to call only for the
large items? We--we don't know that.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: And then if they
have numerous items, they're going to have to tell
you.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: They're going to
have to tell us that they're--they're doing it or,
you know, we'll have to go back, but the whole
concept here is that we'll learn a lot--

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: [interposing]
Right.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: --about what this--
what's going to happen here?

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Well, it's much
appreciated and I--I thank you again for what you're

doing. I hope folks continue working to--to begin
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the--the program in the fall. So I want to jump to
the equipment, and we weed out for snow removal. So
you said the priority most of it's going to be in
Staten Island and East Queens?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: The priority will
be in those areas where have the small street, which
is primarily--

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: [interposing] So
then you'll just have the equipment on site at one of
the garages?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Right, we'll assign
it to garages as we do now with our current fleet of
Hollisters. So they'll probably--you know, this is
why you want to have garage that's big enough to fit
extra stuff.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Yeah, actually,
you do. Well, that's great because New Dorp Beach
and Wesley and parts of my district with the--with
the vary narrow streets as you--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] Yes.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: --we—--we—--we
worked together well on that Sunday during the snow
storm to get the equipment there and to dig the good

folks of New Dorp Beach and--and Wesley out. They
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have a lot of schools on narrow streets that these--
this will be very helpful. So thank you for that.
In terms of the tertiary contracts, the--the
contract?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: So the Tertiary
Contracts expire at the end of this year. As we get
the equipment in, it is likely that we will no longer
need them.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: So, you--you're
not going to renew it, and then you're just going to
add DSNY personnel to those routes and--7

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: That--that is my--
my intention.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: And is there
anything else that you have to do especially with the
Staten Island, you know, plan or are you just
basically incorporating the personnel?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: No, no we--1I mean
because we don't actually even activate the--the--the
contracts for every event. So we have coverage plans
for DSNY.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: And I--I guess the
assumption is a lot of the new equipment will be used

for these small tertiary streets as well?
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COMMISSTIONER GARCIA: Yes, I mean
they're--they're designed for the tertiary size
street for--in your community Julissa's block
[laughs] and other areas of the city.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Excellent. I'm
just moving along quickly so we can get through as
much as we can. Organic expansion on Staten Island?
That's based on the compost capital improvements?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: So we have to do
some capital improvements at the Staten Island
Compost facility. We think those will be done by
about next fall. So the fall of 2017, and we would
then roll out Staten Island then. But I mean it is
based on us getting some work done ahead of that.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: So then we're not
expanding at all--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing]
That's right.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: --at least until
fall of 20172

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: You're--you're
going to be on the later side of the next expansion--

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Okay.
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COMMISSTIONER GARCIA: -—-that I have
planned.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Right. So then
obviously over the next year we'll talk more about
the--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing] Yeah.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: --the capital
improvements that are--that are needed. Illegal
dumping. You've worked very well with--with me and--
and my colleagues. We've added more resources to
illegal team. At the prelim hearing I was talking
about cameras. While you don't have to get into
specifics of ongoing investigations, are we using
cameras? Are we putting them up? Are they temporary
and--and where we can relocate them? You know,
visiting the hot spots along the west shore, we've
give you some sites.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Uh-huh.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: If you'll Jjust
give me an update on the illegal dumping program that
you're talking about.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: [interposing]
Certainly so--so as you know that we've been doing

[bell] quite a bit of surveillance and we have been
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using cameras. We've done over 500 hours of
surveillance. We've--we've impounded three vehicles,

but you know, they are--they are very time intensive,
but we have been able to capture some folks. We've
also coordinated with DOT and actually primarily
other areas in this city where they were having
people dump on their property, and actually just used
fake cameras there and it was effective.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Excellent, and you
said three vehicles right?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Yep.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Excellent. Great
Kills remediation?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: So Great Kills
remediation is primarily driven by the National Park
Service. We are committed to assist with the funding
of the study that's required under federal law, and
so we provide guidance to the study, but it's really
driven by the National Park Service. I do know they
are working hard to make sure their prioritizing work
that needs to happen to facilitate the Army Corps
Flood Mitigation Program.

MINORITY LEADER MATTEO: Yeah, I mean

obviously that's a priority and we'll continue to
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follow up with NPS and--and all the agencies that are
involved to ensure that we're moving forward. Chairs
if you can indulge me in just a few minutes for two
more questions? Thank you. I want to talk about
recycling rates in Staten Island. You and I talked
about this, you know, as much as we can, and I know
we have a cycling basket, you know, placement for
recycling and our outreach. Can you--can you tell me
in the budget what is allocated to recycling, you
know, outreach and what we can be doing more to get
our numbers up, obviously working together and doing
more outreach?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Certainly so the--
the good news is that diversion is up year over year
and in the last two years we're up about 10%, which
is like one point each year on diversion. In Staten
Island, you've been hovering at just under 20%, but
that's better than last year when you were at 18%.
The guy on the other side of you that has the best
numbers. So we haven't seen improvements. There's
about $17 million in the budget for outreach in a
variety of formats whether or not that's tabling
events doing, you know, video. I feel like I am

actually a star of Taxi TV. [laughter] But anywhere
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we—-—and---and the Channel 25. I also appear there
often.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: I'll have to check
it out.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: But anything that
we can do to get the message out we do. The one
thing that I will say is that with the organics
expansion we have seen better diversion of metal,
glass and plastic and paper when that occurs. So I
anticipate that we will continue to see these numbers
improve. But we are happy to do anything creative.

I think that--that we can. We've been doing a lot of
media recently, and some reporters have been very
interested in following their recyclables or
following their garbage, which I think can be very
helpful.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Do you--the bins
that we're putting out, the three of them together--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Uh-huh.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: --the closed bins,
the green, the blue we have that all with a removal
plan. I think it's helping. I think it's--it's

raising aware--recycling awareness. Do you find that
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placing those in commercial corridors are--are
helping as well? Because I mean--

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: It--it

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: --my commercial
corridor is a lot different.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: It depends on the

area.
COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Okay.
COMMISSIONER GARCIA: I have had success
with recycling bins in some areas. In other areas

I've had very, very heavy contamination.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Okay. All right,
and we could discuss this further, and the--and the
last question and again thank you chairs. I--I
appreciate the extra time. Obviously in Staten
Island, we've--we've been using the City Council
Cleanup Initiative very well. My Clean Team, the
borough president's Clean Team, Council Member
Borelli's Clean Team, where we've done over 250
locations, countless numbers of bags. But, you know,
we still have a problem, and it's human behavior,
people throwing garbage out of the window. And you
get off the highway and you get off at Bradley Avenue

in Staten Island and you--and you see that one
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section on North Garren (sic) and they just keep
throwing them out. 1Is there a better marketing
strategy or better out-of-the-box creative way of,
you know, not just putting the, you know, don't
litter. And I know you guys aren't even putting many
signs up but, you know, human behavior-- And again,
I'm blaming the human behavior, but it's happening
and we keep sending out our Clean Teams back, you
keep sending your Lot Division to all these lots. And
we're doing--we're putting more resource, more
resources. Looking for--for a creative way, how do
we find these hot spots especially on these service
roads to prevent them whether we use flower beds. We
use different marketing strategies, different signs.
Because I--you know, to do--I know we can't put a
basket there because as you and I talked offline,
people will think they can make the shot on this.
But, you know, do you have any thoughts on how we can
have that creative out-of-the-box thinking to, you
know, get these spots to, you know, at least try and
get someone to think twice before they--they throw
that--that garbage that lunch back, that coffee cup

out the window.
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COMMISSTIONER GARCIA: I mean I'm--I'm—--T
will definitely work with you on it. It is one of
the continuing frustrations because we've been doing
anti-littering messaging for probably 50 years. And
you still--even near my office watch people who--who
are maybe 10, 15 feet away from a litter basket, just
throw it on the curb. We are trying to think through
what could be a better message. I like your idea of
flower beds. I think that that could be something
that could be interesting, and I'll certainly talk to
DOT about whether or not they find that to be useful.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: Uh-huh.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: But not it's--it's
very, very challenging.

COUNCIL MEMBER MATTEO: And--and again,
I'm——I'm willing to put in, you know, some funding
out of our own discretionary capital. It depends on,
you know, what it--what it will require to--to do
some of these things. So I appreciate it. The
partnership with you and Chief Monte on Staten Island
that's been great. You've--you've been responsive
during snow, every day, you know, with all these
issues that you raise back up. So I thank you for

that. I--I think the chairs for--for recognizing the
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efforts out of Staten Island, and it's Jjust been a--a
pleasuring partnering with you, and I'm looking
forward to continuing with this.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Thank you.

CHATRPERSON FERRERAS-COPELAND: Thank
you. Now, we will hear from Council Member King
followed by Council Lander, and we've been joined by
Council Member Constantinides.

COUNCIL MEMBER KING: Thank you, Madam
Chair and Mr. Chair. Before I start my gquestioning,
I'm just going to piggy back off of what the Finance
Chair said. Recently I read an article in regards to
us in the City Council we go before a hearing and we
have our commissioners in front of us. We usually
just sign their praises. They don't hold them
accountable, but in the case I think we do hold you
and the San--the Department of Sanitation
accountable, and if we're going to sing praises, we
have to sing praises because you've been exceptional
and them being--having access to you and responding.
I know when I've had issues in my district I was able
to get a hold of you without any troubles or--or
dropped calls or anything. So I want to thank you

for being accessible and helping us all in--in
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whatever crisis that we have when it comes to
Sanitation. So thank you and your wonderful team. My
questions, and I have about four questions. I'm
going to start with the Organics Collection Program.
I'm reading how we're from the briefing that you're
going to be expanding in the Bronx from--the Bronx
community 10 and 11. I'm just a little--a little
unclear. When you say Bronx communities or any of
these communities, are you talking about community
boards, council districts.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Community boards--

COUNCIL MEMBER KING: [interposing] okay.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: --because we--we
are-—-all of our districts code terminus with
community boards.

COUNCIL MEMBER KING: Okay, all this is
full-term community boards?

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Uh-huh.

COUNCIL MEMBER KING: Okay, so one day
we're going to get to Community Board 12. I'm
looking forward to that day. My next guestion goes in
regards to the recycling program that you, and I
heard the conversations about NYCHA, and when it

comes to the DOE, the outreach that you're doing, I
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